
 
 

November 01, 2021                                                                           - 1 -                                                                               11:25 AM 

A G E N D A  •  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  M E E T I N G  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 1, 2021 6:00 PM           Council Chamber 

  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the 
City Council Chamber to participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk or General 
Services Director at (559) 324-2060 (TTY – 711).  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will 
enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Council Chamber. 
 
The Clovis City Council meetings are open to the public at the physical address listed above. There 
are numerous ways to participate in the City Council meetings: you are able to attend in person; you 
may submit written comments as described below; you may participate by calling in by phone (see 
“Verbal Comments” below); and you may view the meeting which is webcast and accessed at 
www.cityofclovis.com/agendas. 
 
Written Comments 

 

 Members of the public are encouraged to submit written comments at: 
www.cityofclovis.com/agendas at least two (2) hours before the meeting (4:00 p.m.).  You 
will be prompted to provide:  

 

 Council Meeting Date 
 Item Number 
 Name 
 Email 
 Comment  

 

 Please submit a separate form for each item you are commenting on. 
 

 A copy of your written comment will be provided to the City Council noting the item number.  
If you wish to make a verbal comment, please see instructions below. 

 

 Please be aware that any written comments received that do not specify a particular agenda 
item will be marked for the general public comment portion of the agenda. 

 
 If a written comment is received after 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting, efforts will be 

made to provide the comment to the City Council during the meeting.  However, staff cannot 
guarantee that written comments received after 4:00 p.m. will be provided to City Council 
during the meeting.  All written comments received prior to the end of the meeting will be 
made part of the record of proceedings. 

 

Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2060 
www.cityofclovis.com 

1

file:///C:/Users/dianab/Downloads/www.cityofclovis.com/agendas
http://www.cityofclovis.com/agendas/
http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/


November 01, 2021                                                                           - 2 -                                                                               11:25 AM 

Verbal Comments 
 

 If you wish to speak to the Council on an item by telephone, you should contact the City 
Clerk at (559) 324-2060 no later than 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 

 
 You will be asked to provide your name, phone number, and your email. You will be emailed 

instructions to log into Webex to participate in the meeting.  Staff recommends participants 
log into the Webex at 5:30 p.m. the day of the meeting to perform an audio check. 

 
 All callers will be placed on mute, and at the appropriate time for your comment your 

microphone will be unmuted. 
 

 In order for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 
minutes per topic.   
 

Webex Participation 
 

 Reasonable efforts will be made to allow written and verbal comment from a participant 
communicating with the host of the virtual meeting.  To do so, a participant will need to chat 
with the host and request to make a written or verbal comment.  The host will make 
reasonable efforts to make written and verbal comments available to the City Council.  Due 
to the new untested format of these meetings, the City cannot guarantee that these written 
and verbal comments initiated via chat will occur.  Participants desiring to make a verbal 
comment via chat will need to ensure that they accessed the meeting with audio 
transmission capabilities.   

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
FLAG SALUTE - Councilmember Bessinger 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the City 
Council on any matter within the City Council’s jurisdiction that is not listed on the Agenda.  In order 
for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 minutes per 
topic.  Anyone wishing to be placed on the Agenda for a specific topic should contact the City 
Manager’s office and submit correspondence at least 10 days before the desired date of appearance. 
 
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS - With respect to the approval of resolutions and ordinances, 
the reading of the title shall be deemed a motion to waive a reading of the complete resolution 
or ordinance and unless there is a request by a Councilmember that the resolution or ordinance be 
read in full, further reading of the resolution or ordinance shall be deemed waived by unanimous 
consent of the Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR - Items considered routine in nature are to be placed upon the Consent 
Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as one item unless a 
Councilmember requests individual consideration.  A Councilmember’s vote in favor of the Consent 
Calendar is considered and recorded as a separate affirmative vote in favor of each action 
listed.  Motions in favor of adoption of the Consent Calendar are deemed to include a motion to 
waive the reading of any ordinance or resolution on the Consent Calendar.  For adoption of 

2



November 01, 2021                                                                           - 3 -                                                                               11:25 AM 

ordinances, only those that have received a unanimous vote upon introduction are considered 
Consent items. 
 

1. Administration - Approval - Minutes from the October 11, 2021 Council Meeting. 
2. Administration - Adopt - Ord. 21-06, OA2021-003, A request to amend the Clovis 

Development Code, Title 9 to the Clovis Municipal Code, Relating to Housing 
Development Project Standards and Procedures, Density Bonus Provisions, 
Accessory Dwelling Units, and Review Procedures. City of Clovis, applicant. (Vote: 5-
0) 

3. Administration - Adopt - Ord. 21-07, R2021-007, a request to rezone 3.48 acres from 
the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zone District to the R-1-MD (Single-Family 
Residential Medium Density) Zone District. (Vote: 5-0) 

4. General Services - Approval – Res. 21-___,  Amending the Position Allocation Plan by 
Adding One (1) Engineering Technician within the Planning and Development Services 
Department. 

5. Police - Approval - Res. 21-__, Authorize the Clovis Police Department’s renewal in 
the State of California Department of General Services Surplus Property Program.   

6. Police - Approval - Res. 21-__, Amending the Police Department’s Budget for FY 2021-
2022 to reflect the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 2021-2022 Grant 
Assistance Program Grant award in the amount of $44,750.00 

7. Police - Approval - Res. 21__, Amending the Police Department Budget for FY 2021-
2022 to reflect the award from the Office of Traffic Safety Selective Enforcement Traffic 
Program Grant in the amount of $73,000. 

8. Public Utilities – Approval – Contract Changes Orders 1, 2, and 3 for CIP 21-09, 
Surface Water Treatment Plant 2.5 Million Gallon Water Storage Reservoir Coating 
Project; and Approval – Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Contract Change 
Orders on behalf of the City. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS - Administrative Items are matters on the regular City Council Agenda 
other than Public Hearings. 
 

9. Consider items associated with property located north of Shepherd Avenue generally 
between Sunnyside Avenues and North Carson Avenue (Big Dry Creek Dam).  

 
a. Consider Approval – Res. 21-___, A request by Wilson Premier Homes to modify 
the boundary of a proposed amendment to the City of Clovis Sphere of Influence (SOI) 
reducing acreage from ±1,050 acres to ±155 acres and to allow for the preparation and 
submittal of an application to the Fresno County Local Agency Formation Commission 
(LAFCo). 
 
b. Consider Approval – Res. 21-___, A request authorizing the City Manager to execute 
an amendment to a previously executed consultant agreement between the City of 
Clovis and De Novo Planning Group (De Novo) for the preparation of an Environmental 
Impact Report and related services. 
 
Staff: Ricky Caperton, Deputy City Planner 
Recommendation: Approve  
 
 

3



November 01, 2021                                                                           - 4 -                                                                               11:25 AM 

10. Consider Approval – Final Acceptance for CIP 20-11 Clovis Avenue Street 
Rehabilitation. 

 
Staff: Mike Harrison, City Engineer 
Recommendation: Approve 
 

COUNCIL ITEMS 
 

11. Consider Approval – City Manager Employment Agreement with John Holt, and 
Appointment of John Holt as City Manager effective January 1, 2022. 

 
Staff: Shonna Halterman, General Services Director 
Recommendation: Approve 
 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 
 

12. COVID-19 Update. 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MEETINGS AND KEY ISSUES 
 
Regular City Council Meetings are held at 6:00 P.M. in the Council Chamber. The following are future 
meeting dates: 
 
Nov. 8, 2021 (Mon.) 
Nov. 15, 2021 (Mon.) 
Dec. 6, 2021 (Mon.) 
Dec. 13, 2021 (Mon.) 
Dec. 20, 2021 (Mon.) 
 
 

4



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

October 11, 2018                                                         - 1 -                                                                     12:17 PM 

CLOVIS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD/ 
CLOVIS CITY COUNCIL JOINT MEETING 

 
 
October 11, 2021       6:00 P.M.         Council Chamber 
 
1. 6:04 CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Flores 
 
2. 6:04 FLAG SALUTE – Board President Dr. Fogg 
 
3. 6:05 ROLL CALL 

 
Clovis City Council – All Councilmembers present with exception of Councilmember 
Ashbeck. 
 
CUSD Governing Board – All Board Members present with the exception of Board Member 
Susan Hatmaker. 

 
4. 6:05 INTRODUCTIONS – Staff and elected officials of both agencies introduced 

themselves. 
 
5. 6:07 PUBLIC COMMENTS  

 
Josh Fulfer, resident, commented on various things regarding the management and 
handling of COVID mandates and other related issues. 
 
Blanca, resident, commented on the requirement for students to wear masks while 
attending school and complained about the unfairness the CUSD school board is imposing 
this restriction on the students. 
 
Resident, commended the CUSD school board on the actions taken to protect the students 
in regards to COVID issues. 

 
Clovis Unified Governing Board – 6:16 
 
6. 6:17 Terry Bradley Educational Center – Michael Johnston, Associate Superintendent of 

Administrative Services, presented development plans of the new Terry Bradley Education 
Center. 

 
7. 6:40 Developer Fees for Accessory Dwelling Units – Denver Stairs, Assistant 

Superintendent of Facility Services, provided update. 
 

8. 6:42 Cottage Homes – Denver Stairs, Assistant Superintendent of Facility Services, 
provided update. 
 

9. 6:43 Senate Bill 9 Housing development: approvals – Denver Stairs, Assistant 
Superintendent of Facility Services, presented questions for the City Council and staff to 
provide update. Staff provided brief overview of SB 9. 

5

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

October 11, 2018                                                         - 2 -                                                                     12:17 PM 

 
10. 6:55 Dress Code Review – Eimear O’Brien, Ed.D., Superintendent, provided update on 

dress code issues and actions taken to review and update the dress code. 
 
Josh Fulfer, resident, commented on the dress code issues and encouraged the CUSD 
school board to not make changes or if there are too many issues then go to uniforms. 
 
Sean Soares, resident, commented on the various things related to dress code issues. 
 

11. 7:08 Later School Start Times in 2022-23 – Corrine Folmer, Ed.D., Associate 
Superintendent of School Leadership, presented options on different school start times. 
 
Resident, commented on changing school start times and complained about the potential 
impacts to parents who work outdoors and have early work schedules. 
 

12. 7:12 Other School Challenges – Norm Anderson, Deputy Superintendent, provided update 
on challenges the school district is currently facing. The school district is experiencing a 
shortage of staffing. Other challenges include managing and handling COVID vaccine 
mandates; learning loss; and social, emotional, and behavioral issues that stemmed from 
students being home for so long. 
 
Sean Soares, resident, commented on COVID related issues and expressed concern for 
the impacts it will have on students.  
 

City of Clovis – 7:31 
 

13. 7:31 City Growth Projections / Development Update – Planning & Development Services 
Director Renee Mathis 
 

14. 7:58 City Community Investment Program – Planning & Development Services Director 
Renee Mathis 

 
15. 8:15 Discussion on Building Community Consensus regarding Vaccines - Mayor Flores 

 
Josh Fulfer, resident, commented on the ongoing COVID related issues and complained 
about the vaccine mandate.  
 
Matthew White, resident, commented on various COVID vaccine related issues and 
complained about the lack of consistency and transparency from the CUSD school board. 
 
Addison North, resident, commented on various COVID vaccine related issues and 
complained about the lack of consistency and transparency from the CUSD school board. 
 
Blanca, resident, commented on various COVID related issues including vaccines and 
mask requirement for students.  
 
Joe, resident, commented on various COVID vaccine issues.  
 
Resident, commented on COVID vaccine issues and expressed distrust in the CDC. 

6

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

October 11, 2018                                                         - 3 -                                                                     12:17 PM 

 
Marty Cook, resident, commented on various COVID vaccine issues. 
 
Bill Lurch, commented on various COVID related issues and mandates.   
 
Tamara North, resident, commented on various COVID related issues and expressed 
concern regarding vaccine mandates. 
 

16. 8:54 CITY MANAGER/SUPERINTENDENT COMMENTS 
City Manager, Luke Serpa, commented on the purpose and benefits of the City Council 
and CUSD Board joint meeting. He assured that City staff will continue to communicate, 
cooperate, and collaborate with CUSD staff to provide a high level of service for Clovis 
residents. 
 
Superintendent, Eimear O’Brien, commented on the important issues addressed at the 
meeting and assured that CUSD staff will continue to work with the City Council and City 
Staff as they move forward to find solutions. She also thanked the community members 
who attended the meeting to speak on their concerns. 
 

17. 9:56 COUNCIL/BOARD COMMENTS 
Councilmembers and Boardmembers expressed gratitude to Clovis Unified School District 
and City of Clovis, thanked staff for all presentations, and thanked the community members 
for their comments as difficult but important conversations regarding COVID related issues 
were had. 

 
18. 10:20 ADJOURNMENT 
 

Meeting adjourned:  10:20 p.m. 
 
 
 

______________________________  ________________________________ 
Mayor      City Clerk 

7

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration  

DATE: November 1, 2021 

SUBJECT: Administration - Adopt - Ord. 21-06, OA2021-003, A request to 
amend the Clovis Development Code, Title 9 to the Clovis Municipal 
Code, Relating to Housing Development Project Standards and 
Procedures, Density Bonus Provisions, Accessory Dwelling Units, 
and Review Procedures. City of Clovis, applicant. (Vote: 5-0) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

 
This item was approved for introduction on October 18, 2021 with a unanimous vote. 
 
Please direct questions to the City Manager’s office at 559-324-2060. 
 

8

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration  

DATE: November 1, 2021 

SUBJECT: Administration - Adopt - Ord. 21-07, R2021-007, a request to rezone 
3.48 acres from the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zone District to 
the R-1-MD (Single-Family Residential Medium Density) Zone 
District. (Vote: 5-0) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

 
This item was approved for introduction on October 18, 2021 with a unanimous vote. 
 
Please direct questions to the City Manager’s office at 559-324-2060. 
 

9

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department 

DATE: November 1, 2021 

SUBJECT: General Services - Approval – Res. 21-___,  Amending the Position 
Allocation Plan by Adding One (1) Engineering Technician within the 
Planning and Development Services Department. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 21-___ Position Allocation Plan 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For City Council to approve Resolution 21-___, amending the City’s FY 21-22 Position 
Allocation Plan by adding one (1) Engineering Technician position within the Planning and 
Development Services Department.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Currently the Planning and Development Services Department is authorized for two (2) 
Engineering Technician/Senior Engineering Technician positions. It is recommended that the 
City’s Position Allocation Plan be amended to add one (1) additional Engineering Technician.  
Council approval is required for changes to the Position Allocation Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Planning and Development Services Department has recently evaluated the work 
assignments in the department and has determined that the addition of one (1) Engineering 
Technician will more efficiently support the current needs of the department.  This position will 
assist with the additional encroachment permits, plan reviews and capital contract payments.  
The desired change results in the need to modify the City’s Position Allocation Plan which 
requires Council approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The salary and related benefit costs of the proposed change for the remainder of the fiscal year 
would be approximately an additional $55,000. There are adequate funds in the Planning and 
Development Services budget to cover the costs of the position. 

10

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The addition of one (1) Engineering Technician position will better support the current staffing 
needs in the Planning and Development Services Department. The change must be reflected in 
the authorized FY 21-22 Planning and Development Services Department position allocation.  
Modification of the Position Allocation Plan requires Council Approval. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
The position allocation for the Planning and Development Services Department will be modified 
as noted in Attachment A of Attachment 1.  The position vacancy will be filled through a current 
eligible list.  
 
Prepared by: Lori Shively/Personnel/Risk Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  
 

11

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 

RESOLUTION 21- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE  
CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE  

CITY’S FY 21-22 POSITION ALLOCATION PLAN 
 
 
The City Council of the City of Clovis resolves as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, the FY 21-22 Position Allocation Plan in the Planning and Development Services 

Department was approved as part of the FY 21-22 City budget adoption process; and 
 

WHEREAS, a review of the staffing needs of the City indicates that the addition of one (1) 
Engineering Technician position is necessary in order to provide assistance with 
encroachment permits, plan reviews and capital contract payments for the Planning and 
Development Services Department; and 

 
WHEREAS, amending the City’s adopted FY 21-22 Position Allocation Plan requires City 

Council authorization. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clovis that the City’s 

FY 21-22 Position Allocation Plan shall be amended as noted in Attachment A of 
Attachment 1 attached. 

 
   

 *  *  *  *    * 

 
The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council 
of the City of Clovis held on November 1, 2021, by the following vote to wit: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 
DATED: November 1, 2021 
 
 

 
___________________________  __________________________ 

                     Mayor                                 City Clerk 
 
 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 

12

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 

 
 
 

POSITION ALLOCATION ADJUSTMENT BY DEPARTMENT FY 21-22 
 
 
 
 
 
DEPARTMENT                                                             NUMBER OF POSITIONS  
 
Planning and Development Services Department  
 
           Add:    Engineering Technician 1.0 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A of ATTACHMENT 1 

13

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Police Department  

DATE: November 1, 2021  

SUBJECT: Police - Approval - Res. 21-__, Authorize the Clovis Police Department’s 
renewal in the State of California Department of General Services 
Surplus Property Program.   

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution  
2. Compliance Form CASASP 203 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve the resolution for renewal of the Clovis Police Department’s 
participation in the State of California Department of General Services Surplus Property 
Program.    
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Clovis Police Department is requesting Council approval to continue participation in State 
surplus programs.  The State of California requires as a condition of participation in this program 
that approval is obtained from the governing board.   
 
BACKGROUND 
The Clovis Police Department has previously participated in the surplus program for more than 
25 years.  Property obtained through this service program allows the Police Department to 
procure items needed at a reduced rate or no cost.  Items attained allow the Police Department 
to conduct business as usual and facilitate every day operations.  This program is not to be 
confused with the military DRMO or DRMS (Defense Reutilization and Marketing Service) 
programs.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The Police Department will acquire surplus property through State channels at a reduced rate 
or minimal charge.  This has a minimal impact on the Police Department’s budget.   
 
 

14

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The State of California Department of General Services Surplus Property Program requires a 
signed resolution and program forms for continued participation.   
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
After Council approval, the resolution and attached forms for renewal in the GSA program will 
be signed and submitted.  
 
Prepared by: James Boldt, Police Lieutenant  
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  
 

15

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 21-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS AUTHORIZING THE 
APPLICATION RENEWAL IN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL 

SERVICES SURPLUS PROPERTY PROGRAM 
 

WHEREAS, Council approval in the Clovis Police Department’s renewal in the State of 

California program to acquire surplus inventory from the Department of General Services; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Police Department has a need for specific equipment; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Police Department will use attained equipment for day to day operations; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council determines that the acquisitions are necessary. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Board, and hereby ordered 

that the Clovis Police Department shall be authorized to acquire surplus property through 

the auspices of the California State Agency for Surplus Property and accept responsibility 

for any necessary payment of incidental fees by the surplus property agency under the 

terms and conditions of program as attached in Attachment A. 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on November 1, 2021 by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED: November 1, 2021  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 
 
 

  
 

16

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES 

OFFICE OF FLEET AND ASSET MANAGEMENT 

ELIGIBILITY APPLICATION

CASASP 202 (Rev 2/2019) 

GENERAL SERVICES 

Governor Gavin Newsom 

RESOLUTION 

"BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Board, and hereby ordered that the offical(s) and/or employee(s) whose name(s), tille(s), and signature(s) are listed 

below shall be and is (are) hereby authorized as our representative(s) to acquire surplus property through the auspices of the California State Agency for 

Surplus Property and accept responsibility for payment of incidental fees by the surplus property agency under the Terms and Conditions accompanying 

this form or listed on the reverse side of this form." 

NAME (Print or Type) TITLE SIGNATURE* 
A.,_.., 0. L / J-.;;_J C{,/)-Je',S. 0,)KXL 2-/ ett1e.1{j/) r �1t1� 

-:Ta./18:I !J / O fv.,y) 
$,"clu;1 !.Ju/Jlrf' 

*Note: All signatures must be in original form. No copied or stamped signatures

B. The above resolution was PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of

__________________ by the following vote: AYES:
Agency Name 

I, ______________ Clerk of the Governing Board known as

,20 

; NOES: 

E-MAIL ADDRESS

i Cl 1J/"J c:5 b<? c//2, u/ do u r �. (,tt;,�
V J 

·7 �10 � e ('.__J r)o,::-uw, s . ((, ·'1

, by the Governing Board of the: 

; ABSENT: ___ _ 

Do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct resolution adopted by the governing board of the below named organization at 
the meeting thereof held at its regular place of meeting on this date and by the vote above stated, a copy of said resolution is on file in the 
principap office of the Governing Board. 

Signed by: _____________________ _

Name of Organization 

Mailling Address 

City Zip Code County 

NOTE: ALL LOCAL GOVERNMENT & NON-PROFIT INCORPORATED ORGANIZATIONS HAVE A GOVERNING BOARD, THEREFORE

COMPLETE ONLY SECTIONS "A" & "B". THE FOLLOWING SECTION "C" IS FOR STATE AGENCIES ONLY

C. AUTHORIZED this day of _______ 20 ___ -',_by: ____________________ _
Signature of Administrative Officer 

Printed Name of Chief Administrative Officer Title 

Organization Name Street Address 

City ZIP Code County 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA AGENCIES ARE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE THEIR STATE BILLING CODE: 

OFFICE OF FLEET AND ASSET MANAGEMENT I State of California I Government Operations Agency 

1700 National Drive I Sacramento, CA 95834 

Attachment A
17

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



18

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



ATTACHMENT 2
19

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Police Department 

DATE: November 1, 2021  

SUBJECT: Police - Approval - Res. 21-__, Amending the Police Department’s 
Budget for FY 2021-2022 to reflect the Department of Alcoholic 
Beverage Control 2021-2022 Grant Assistance Program Grant award in 
the amount of $44,750.00 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 
2. Copy of Grant Contract 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a resolution amending the 2021-2022 Police Department budget 
and begin grant objectives.    
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Clovis Police Department has been awarded a grant through ABC’s Grant Assistance 
Program for $44,750.00 to reduce the number of violations at ABC licensed establishments and 
reduce minors’ access to alcohol through a combination of enforcement and education. Grant 
funds will primarily be used to offset personnel costs, allowing the Police Department to staff 
directed enforcement details utilizing minor decoy operations, shoulder tap operations, licensee 
inspections, and Teenage Party Prevention and Dispersal (TAPPED) operations.  These 
operations will be done in conjunction with ABC.  Funding will also be used to allow the 
department to provide outreach and education to ABC licensed business owners on prevention 
and to middle and high school students. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Police Department applied for this grant early in 2021 and just recently received notification 
of award of the grant.  The Police Department has been awarded the GAP Grant in 2017, 2018, 
2019, and 2020. The grant was of similar size and used for similar enforcement activities 
resulting in greater ABC compliance by local businesses and a reduction in alcohol-related crime 
at ABC licensed establishments. 
 

20

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



FISCAL IMPACT 
Acceptance of this grant is not expected to have any impact on the allocation of funds in the City 
budget. The Police Department will utilize grant funds to pay for all overtime costs for officers to 
work enforcement and education details.   
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The ABC Grant Assistance Program requires that the Clovis City Council approve the grant and 
amend the Police Department budget to reflect the award. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
After the Council approval, the 2021-2022 Police Department Annual Budget will be amended 
as described. Program objectives began July 1, 2021.   
 
Prepared by: Sandi Macy, Management Analyst  
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  
 

21

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 21-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING THE ACCEPTANCE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL 

FUNDS FOR 2021-2022 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Clovis approved the 2021-2022 
Budget on June 14, 2021; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Police Department has been awarded $44,750 from the 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control for the Grant Assistance Program; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council determines that these expenditures are 
necessary; and 
 
 WHEREAS IT IS AGREED, that any liability arising out of the performance 
of the contract, including civil court actions for damages, shall be the responsibility 
of the grant recipient and the authorizing agency. The State of California and ABC 
disclaim responsibility for any such liability. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Clovis that the 2021-2022 Budget be amended as provided in Attachment A 
“Summary of Expenditures by Department” “Summary of Expenditures by Fund.” 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that grant funds received hereunder shall not 
be used to supplant expenditures controlled by this body. 
 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting 
of the City Council of the City of Clovis held on November 1, 2021 by the following 
vote, to wit:  
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
DATED:  November 1, 2021   
 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 
 
 
  

22

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



ATTACHMENT A 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT 
 
DEPARTMENT 
 
 POLICE   $44,750 
 TOTAL DEPARTMENT $44,750 
 
 
SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY FUND 
 
 GENERAL FUND  $44,750 
 TOTAL FUND  $44,750 
 
 
All expenditures will be out of the grant budget 56300.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

23

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



ATTACHMENT 2
24

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Police Department  

DATE: November 1, 2021 

SUBJECT: Police - Approval - Res. 21__, Amending the Police Department Budget 
for FY 2021-2022 to reflect the award from the Office of Traffic Safety 
Selective Enforcement Traffic Program Grant in the amount of $73,000. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution  
2. Copy of Grant Contract  
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a Resolution amending the 2021-2022 Budget for the Police 
Department to reflect the grant awards from the Office of Traffic Safety. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Clovis Police Department has been awarded the amount of $73,000 for the Selective Traffic 
Enforcement Program (STEP). These funds are for overtime operations related to traffic safety, 
pedestrian education, and traffic enforcement; The Grant period starts October 1, 2021, and 
ends September 30, 2022. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The department applied for these grants through the State of California. The STEP grant will 
fund officers’ overtime, and training to conduct DUI saturation details, warrant details, seat belt 
enforcement details, bicycle/pedestrian classroom workshops, child-passenger car seat details, 
and distracted driving enforcement operations. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Acceptance of this grant is not expected to have any impact on the allocation of funds in the City 
budget. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
In compliance with the requirements of the Office of Traffic Safety Grant, the City Council must 
approve the acceptance of these grants and amend the Police Department budget. 

25

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
After the Council approval, the 2021-2022 Police Department Annual Budget Resolution will be 
amended as described. Grant program objectives begin on October 1, 2021. 
 
Prepared by: Sandi Macy, Management Analyst 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  
 

26

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 21-__ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 

APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR 2021-2022 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Clovis approved the 2021-2022 Budget 

on June 14, 2021; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Police Department is to be awarded $73,000.00 from the 

California Office of Traffic Safety to fund traffic operations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Police Department has a need for enforcement, traffic safety, and 

education; and 

 

 WHEREAS IT IS AGREED, that the City Council determines that the expenditures 

are necessary.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clovis 

that the 2021-2022 Budget be amended as provided in Attachment A “Summary of 

Expenditures by Department” “Summary of Expenditures by Fund.” 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that grant funds received hereunder shall not be 

used to supplant expenditures controlled by this body. 

 

*  *  *  *    * 

 

 The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the 

City Council of the City of Clovis held on November 1, 2021, by the following vote, to wit:  

 

AYES:  

NOES:   

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  November 1, 2021 

 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

      Mayor       City Clerk 

27

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



 
 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT 
 
DEPARTMENT 
 
 POLICE   $73,000 
 TOTAL DEPARTMENT $73,000 
 
 
 
  SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY FUND 
 
 GENERAL FUND  $73,000 
 TOTAL FUND  $73,000 
 
 
All expenditures will be out of the grant budget 56300.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



ATTACHMENT 2
29

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



30

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



31

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



32

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



33

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



34

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



35

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



36

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



37

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



38

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



39

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



40

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



41

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



42

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



43

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



44

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



45

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



46

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



47

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



48

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Public Utilities Department 

DATE: November 1, 2021 

SUBJECT: Public Utilities – Approval – Contract Changes Orders 1, 2, and 3 for 
CIP 21-09, Surface Water Treatment Plant 2.5 Million Gallon Water 
Storage Reservoir Coating Project; and Approval – Authorize the City 
Manager to Execute the Contract Change Orders on behalf of the 
City. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Vicinity Map  
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. For the City Council to approve three (3) contract change orders for CIP 21-09, SWTP 

2.5 MG Water Storage Reservoir Coating Project, to Unified Field Services Corporation 
in the total amount of $284,101.00; and 

 
2. For the City Council to authorize the City Manager to execute the contract change 

orders on behalf of the City. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Staff is recommending that Council authorize the City Manager to execute Contract Change 
Orders No. 1, 2, and 3 to Unified Field Services Corporation in the amount of $284,101.00.  
 
This project was awarded on September 13, 2021 to Unified Field Services as a maintenance 
project to recoat the interior of the existing steel 2.5 million gallon water storage reservoir 
(tank) at the Clovis Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP). Staff also contracted with CSI 
Services, Inc. to provide professional inspection services for the tank repairs. After exposure 
of and access to the inside and top of the tank, the latest inspection report from CSI Services 
advised that additional urgent structural repairs and recoating work was needed. Staff is in 
agreement with CSI’s determination and is recommending the change orders to address the 
replacement of roof rafters in the tank that are experiencing severe corrosion, to add 

49

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



dehumidification for additional quality control and to maintain the construction schedule, and 
to provide surface preparation and coating for the entire exterior of the tank.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On September 13, 2021, City Council approved the bid award for CIP 21-09, SWTP 2.5 MG 
Water Storage Reservoir Coating Project, and authorized the City Manager to execute the 
contract on behalf of the City with Unified Field Services Corporation in the amount of 
$676,270.00. The bid award included additive alternate bid item A2 for Exterior Surface 
Preparation and Coatings Work, which more specifically addressed the painting and repair 
of the lowest 8 feet of the exterior of the water storage tank only. During design, this area of 
the tank was found to need repairs and recoating.  
 
Contract Change Order 1  
During the course of the initial investigative sand blasting of the interior of the tank, it was 
found that a substantial portion of the roof support system was heavily corroded, 
compromising the tank’s structural integrity, and was therefore in urgent need of repair or 
replacement.  
 
Contract Change Order 1 accounts for the modification, repair, and replacement of the 
corroded portions of the roof support system, including the replacement of the corroded 
steel roof rafters. The City’s tank inspection consultant, CSI Services, advised City staff that 
the replacement of the rafters and the other proposed modifications and repairs are in the 
best interest of the City for both short- and long-term structural stability and performance of 
the tank. The total requested amount for this change order is $136,385. 
 
Contract Change Order 2 
This change order is for the use of dehumidification equipment during the construction 
activities. Dehumidification equipment was included in the project specifications as additive 
alternate bid item A1 to provide an option to keep the contractor on schedule with the 
anticipated cool seasonal temperatures and the onset of wet weather. The City has 
requested the use of dehumidification equipment to reduce the extra working days for the 
additional work noted in Contract Change Order 1, and CSI Services has advised City staff 
that the use of dehumidification equipment will limit working days from being added to the 
contract for the additional work. This will allow the City and contractor to maintain the 
construction schedule as set in the specifications so that the project is completed in a timely 
manner, minimizing the duration of the SWTP not being in operation. The total requested 
amount for this change order is $73,080. 
 
Contract Change Order 3 
Change Order 3 is intended to allow for the full painting of the entire exterior portion of the 
tank. During the 2019 tank inspection, CSI Services noted that the lowest 8 feet of the tank, 
as well as the pipe appurtenances connecting to the tank, were experiencing degradation 
of the initial coating and were in need of recoating, and some areas were in need of minor 
repairs. The repair and painting of the lowest 8 feet was included as part of additive alternate 
bid item A2 and was approved as part of the original contract work. During construction, it 
was found that approximately 50% of the top coat on the roof of the tank was compromised 

50

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



and peeling away. CSI Services has advised City staff to clean and recoat the remainder of 
the exterior of the tank in an effort to prevent more significant corrosion from occurring. The 
total requested amount for this change order is $74,636. 
 
The proposed change orders have been thoroughly reviewed by City staff and the 
associated work is required to complete the project. The water storage tank will be 
structurally sound, delivered in a timely manner, and will be better protected from future 
early deterioration. City staff recommends approving Contract Change Orders 1, 2, and 3 to 
Unified Field Services Corporation in the total amount of $284,101.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The fiscal year 2021-2022 Water Enterprise budget includes sufficient funds for the costs 
associated with the project contract change orders.   
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The SWTP water storage tank is a critical asset in our system operation and staff are seeking 
to extend the life of the reservoir to the maximum extent practicable. There are sufficient 
funds available for the anticipated costs of the project. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Contract Change Orders 1, 2, and 3 will be executed by the City Manager on behalf of the 
City. 
 
 
Prepared by: Kevin Tuttle, Civil Engineer 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

51

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



Wi
llo

w

Pe
ac

h

Clo
vis

Su
nn

ys
ide

Fo
wle

r

Ar
ms

tro
ng

Te
mp

era
nc

e

Lo
ca

n

De
 W

olf

Shepherd

Teague

Nees

Alluvial

Herndon

Sierra

Bullard

Barstow

Shaw

Gettysburg

Ashlan

Dakota

Le
on

ard

Hig
hla

nd

Mi
nn

ew
aw

a

4ATTACHMENT 1
CITY LIMITS SPHERE OF INFLUENCE

VICINITY MAP

Prepared By:

CIP 21-09 SWTP 2.5 MG Water Storage Reservoir Coating Project

52

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.

Thomas K. Cheng
Typewritten Text
Prepared By: 

kevint
Text Box
Kevin Tuttle

nicholast
Callout
SWTP Location

nicholast
Rectangle



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: November 1, 2021 

SUBJECT: Consider items associated with property located north of Shepherd 
Avenue generally between Sunnyside Avenues and North Carson 
Avenue (Big Dry Creek Dam).  

a. Consider Approval – Res. 21-___, A request by Wilson Premier 
Homes to modify the boundary of a proposed amendment to the City of 
Clovis Sphere of Influence (SOI) reducing acreage from ±1,050 acres to 
±155 acres and to allow for the preparation and submittal of an 
application to the Fresno County Local Agency Formation Commission 
(LAFCo). 

b. Consider Approval – Res. 21-___, A request authorizing the City 
Manager to execute an amendment to a previously executed consultant 
agreement between the City of Clovis and De Novo Planning Group (De 
Novo) for the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report and related 
services. 

Staff: Ricky Caperton, Deputy City Planner 

Recommendation: Approve  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 21-___, LAFCo Application Submittal 
2. Res. 21-___, Modified Consultant Agreement 
3. Applicant’s Justification for Revised SOI Boundary 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve requests authorizing a reduction in acreage 
related to an amendment to the City’s SOI from ±1,050 acres to ±155 acres, allow for the 
preparation and submittal of an application to the Fresno County LAFCo, and to allow for the 
City Manager to execute a modified consultant agreement between the City of Clovis and De 

53

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



Novo Planning Group (De Novo) for the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
and related services for the revised SOI boundary, as shown below in Figure 1. 
 

FIGURE 1 
 

 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
On March 1, 2021, the City Council authorized staff to move forward on a request by Wilson 
Premier Homes (applicant) to amend the City’s SOI to include ±1,050 acres located north of 
Shepherd Avenue to Behymer Avenue, and generally between Sunnyside Avenue and the Dry 
Creek Reservoir. This included approval to enter into a consultant agreement with De Novo for 
preparation of an EIR, as well as for staff to begin preparation on an application to LAFCo. 
 
However, the applicant has since submitted a request to revise the previously approved 
boundary from ±1,050 acres to ±155 acres citing potential concerns of biological resource 
constraints in some of the areas, generally west of the Dry Creek Reservoir. The applicant’s 
request for modification to the boundary is provided in Attachment 3.  
 
The revised boundary would allow the applicant to continue moving forward in the process more 
efficiently for development on the ±75 acres at the northeast corner of Sunnyside and Shepherd 
Avenues. If approved, Staff would immediately begin an amendment to the consultant 
agreement with De Novo for continued preparation of the EIR on the revised SOI boundary.  
 
 

54

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



BACKGROUND 
This section serves to provide a brief history to date of the requests related to the SOI 
amendment. 
 

 June 2016: Staff received a request to allow urbanization of the subject property. Staff 
began an internal cursory evaluation of the request to identify potential challenges and 
issues that would require a more detailed evaluation to assess the feasibility of the SOI 
amendment.  
 

 June and September 2018: Applicant’s representative submitted a request for the 
Council to consider direction and to allow for staff to proceed with the SOI amendment 
process. Staff presented the request to the City Council for consideration and sought 
direction. Council ultimately directed staff to continue exploring the feasibility and to report 
back to City Council with an update; however, no direction was given to formally proceed 
at this hearing.  
 

 March 2020: Staff received direction from City Council to move forward and prepare 
environmental studies related to approximately 75 acres of land at the northeast corner 
of Shepherd and Sunnyside Avenues, and to include the neighborhood at the corner of 
Perrin and Sunnyside Avenues as part of the environmental review.  

 

 April 2020: Following Council direction at the March 2, 2020 hearing, the applicant 
requested via email on April 20, 2020 that the project be placed on hold due economic 
uncertainty in the housing industry as a result of COVID-19. 

 

 July and August 2020: Applicant requested staff continue the process and staff releases 
a request for proposal (RFP) for preparation of an Environmental Impact Report and 
related studies. Following release of the RFP, the applicant requested a revision to the 
SOI boundary to include an additional 750 acres, for a total SOI expansion of 825 acres.  

 

 September 2020: Staff received direction from City Council to move forward with the 
process of amending the Clovis SOI, and conducting a neighborhood outreach meeting 
with property owners within the expanded SOI of ±1,050 acres. 
 

 November 2020: Staff held a neighborhood meeting with property owners in and around 
the proposed SOI amendment. 

 

 March 2021: City Council considered and approved requests for the City to enter into a 
consultant agreement with De Novo for preparation of an EIR for amending the City’s SOI 
by ±1,050 acres, and for preparation and submittal of an application to LAFCo. 

 

 March 2021 to present: Following Council direction, Staff entered into a consultant 
agreement with De Novo in April of 2021, and received deposits for payment from the 
applicant to begin work on the EIR. The applicant has since proposed modifying the 
request by reducing the proposed amendment to the SOI from ±1,050 acres to ±155 
acres. 

55

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 
This section provides an update on the status of the Project, as well as an analysis of the 
applicant’s request, followed by a recommendation by Staff. Pursuant to the Council’s direction 
regarding public notice for matters related to this project, Staff provided notice of this meeting to 
approximately 1,200 property owners within and surrounding the ±1,050 acre SOI boundary 
(including property owners within the Dry Creek Preserve).  
 
Status of Project 
Following Council direction at the March 1, 2021 hearing, Staff entered into a contract with EIR 
consultant De Novo Planning Group to begin work on the environmental analysis. Shortly 
thereafter, Staff and the applicant began working on next steps including reviewing conceptual 
layouts and proposed land uses which were to serve as the basis for the environmental review 
to begin. However, throughout this process the applicant continued with their due diligence, 
which ultimately led to their request to reduce the SOI amendment boundary. Because the 
request involves a change to a previously approved action by Council for a defined SOI 
amendment boundary (i.e. ±1,050 acres), Council must consider the applicant’s request to now 
reduce that boundary. 
 
Applicant’s Request 
The applicant’s request to reduce the size of SOI boundary is related primarily to biological 
constraints as described in Attachment 3. As a result, the applicant has requested removal of 
some of this acreage from consideration at this time. This would allow the applicant more time 
to work through the constraints, as well as to move forward more efficiently on entitlements for 
the approximately 75 acres at the northeast corner of Sunnyside and Shepherd Avenues. 
 
Consultant Agreement 
Because the consultant agreement was executed following Council direction on March of 2021, 
if the request is approved, Staff would work with De Novo to provide a revised scope and cost 
for analysis of a reduced boundary. Although the revised cost is not yet known, it is likely that 
the costs would decrease substantially as a result of a smaller area to analyze, going from 
±1,050 acres to ±155 acres. 
 
For reference, the City entered into an agreement with De Novo to complete the EIR for a total 
cost of $448,928.70. This included a base price of $408,117 plus a 10% contingency of 
$40,811.70.  

 
EIR Cost Sharing 
At the direction of Council at the September 2020 hearing, additional acreage was added to the 
applicant’s request at that time to amend the SOI boundary. Subsequently, Council approved 
requests in March 2021 for Staff to proceed with the ±1,050 acre boundary and to enter into an 
agreement with a consultant for preparation of an EIR, of which the City would participate in 
cost-sharing.  
 
The City’s obligation was a total of $89,012.07 which included $69,012.07 for the EIR and 
$20,000 which accounted for a portion of water and sewer studies. In addition, another property 
owner (Harlan Land Co.) was part of the cost-sharing for portions of their land being within the 

56

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



±1,050 acre boundary. Staff has discussed the revised boundary with that property owner, and 
they are not in opposition of the revised boundary understanding that their property would remain 
outside of the City’s SOI at this time.  
 
If the requests are approved by Council reducing the SOI amendment boundary to ±155 acres, 
the City would not participate in cost-sharing, and the costs would solely be borne by the 
applicant. 
 
LAFCo Application 
As part of the requests, Staff is seeking approval to prepare and submit an application to LAFCo 
for the revised boundary of ±155 acres as shown above in Figure 1. If the requests are 
approved, Staff would begin preparation of an application to LAFCo for submittal so that the 
Municipal Services Review (MSR) can begin concurrently while the EIR is being prepared. 
However, in order for the LAFCo application to be deemed “complete,” Staff would bring back 
the EIR for consideration and certification by Council upon its completion.  
 
Next Steps 
If approved, City staff would begin working with the applicant and De Novo to revise the scope 
and budget of the consultant agreement. Following that, the applicant would need to submit 
entitlement applications to formally begin the process. This would likely include an application 
for a general plan amendment, prezone, tract map, as well as SOI amendment and annexation.  
 
As part of the process, additional public meetings would occur with the surrounding 
neighborhood at later dates. These meetings will be appropriately noticed at that time to solicit 
input from the public. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The impact of expanding the SOI would be minimal at the time the SOI is changed. At the point 
of annexation, and subsequent development entitlements, an impact on the City’s ability to 
provide services will be realized. The fiscal impacts on the City will be analyzed at the time of an 
annexation request for the subject property. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Staff is seeking City Council approval on the requests based on the applicant’s justification 
provided in Attachment 3. Direction to proceed with the revised SOI boundary will allow the 
biological constraints to be further reviewed while allowing for processing of entitlements on the 
revised boundary.  

 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
If directed by City Council to proceed, the following would occur (not necessarily in the order 
shown): 
 

 Staff will modify the EIR consultant agreement with De Novo; 

 Staff will work with applicant for submittal of entitlement applications to begin the process 
of engaging with affected agencies and departments; 

57

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



 Staff will begin engaging with Fresno County staff for negotiating an amendment to the 
Memorandum of Understanding and Tax Sharing Agreement; 

 Staff will prepare and submit an application to LAFCo so that the Municipal Services 
Review can begin as the EIR is being prepared; and  

 Staff will work with applicant and consultant to schedule neighborhood meetings, as 
appropriate.  

 
 
Prepared by: Ricky Caperton, Deputy City Planner 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

58

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



ATTACHMENT 1 

DRAFT 
RESOLUTION 21-____ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 

APPROVING AN APPLICATION MODIFYING THE BOUNDARY OF A PREVIOUS 
REQUEST WHICH INCLUDED ±1,050 ACRES DOWN TO ±155 ACRES FOR THE 

UPDATE OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS SPHERE OF INFLUENCE  
 
WHEREAS, at a meeting on November 1, 2021, the Clovis City Council did consider a 

modification to a previously approved request by Wilson Premier Homes for expansion of the City 

of Clovis Sphere of Influence proposed pursuant to Chapter 4 of the Local Government 

Reorganization Act of 2000; and 

 

WHEREAS, a Sphere of Influence is the boundary adopted by the Fresno Local Agency 

Formation Commission that designates a municipality’s probable future urban area within which 

annexations to the City can take place; and 

 

WHEREAS, at a meeting on March 1, 2021, the Clovis City Council approved a request for 

the process to proceed for the addition of approximately 1,050 acres to the existing City of Clovis 

SOI consisting of parcels generally located north of Shepherd Avenue to Behymer Avenue, from 

Sunnyside Avenue to the Big Dry Creek Dam; and 

 

WHEREAS, the revised proposal consists of a reduction to the previous request modifying 

the addition from approximately 1,050 acres to approximately 155 acres to the existing City of 

Clovis SOI consisting of parcels generally located north of Shepherd Avenue to Perrin Avenue, 

from Sunnyside Avenue to Fowler Avenue; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Clovis has determined that the parcels to be included in the SOI 

Expansion will facilitate and encourage orderly growth and development which are essential to 

the social, fiscal, and economic wellbeing of the community; and 

  

WHEREAS, an Environmental Impact Report and appropriate technical studies will be 

prepared to determine the potential environmental effects associated with the amendment 

pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, prior to annexations proposed in the expanded Sphere of Influence area, the City 

shall demonstrate that it has sufficient capacity to provide urban services to the annexation project 

area and areas within 1/8 mile of the site in accordance with the Clovis General Plan, and City 

adopted master service delivery plans for Sewer, Water, and Recycled Water. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Clovis approves the 

submittal of an Application to the Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission, requesting the 

Sphere of Influence Update proceedings be conducted pursuant to the Local Government 

Reorganization Act of 2000.  

59

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



 

 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council 

of the City of Clovis held on November 1, 2021, by the following vote, to wit: 

 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN: 

 

DATED: November 1, 2021 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 

 

 
 

 

60

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



ATTACHMENT 2 

DRAFT 
RESOLUTION 21-____ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO A 
PREVIOUSLY EXECUTED CONSULTANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

CLOVIS AND DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP FOR THE PREPARATION OF AN 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND RELATED SERVICES 

 
 

WHEREAS, a request by Wilson Premier Homes (Applicant) was received by the City of 

Clovis to amend the Clovis Sphere of Influence for the addition of approximately 1,050 acres 

consisting of parcels generally located north of Shepherd Avenue to Perrin Avenue, from 

Sunnyside Avenue to Fowler Avenue; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City requires assistance from an external consulting firm to assist with the 

preparation of an Environmental Impact Report and related services for purposes of analyzing 

potential environmental effects, related to a request for a Sphere of Influence Amendment to 

include approximately 155 acres generally located north of Shepherd Avenue to Perrin 

Avenue, from Sunnyside Avenue to the Fowler Avenue, pursuant to the California 

Environmental Quality Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, after soliciting proposals through a Request for Proposals process in August 

2020, De Novo Planning Group was selected to perform these services based on their 

substantial experience with the preparation of Environmental Impact Reports and technical 

studies for similar projects, and entered into a consultant agreement with the City in April of 

2021; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Applicant has requested to modify the request to reduce the Sphere of 

Influence amendment boundary from approximately 1,050 acres to approximately 155 acres, 

causing a modification to the previously executed consultant agreement. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis Council authorizes the 

City Manager to execute an amendment to a previously executed consultant agreement 

(attached hereto as Attachment A) between the City of Clovis and De Novo Planning Group 

for the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report and Related Services for the modified 

Sphere of Influence amendment boundary of approximately 155 acres. 

 

 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

 

 

61

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



 

 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on November 1, 2021, by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  November 1, 2021 

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 

 
 

 

 

62

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



ATTACHMENT AAttachment A
63

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



64

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



65

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



66

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



67

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



68

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



69

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



70

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



71

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



72

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



73

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



74

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



75

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



76

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



77

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



78

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



79

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



80

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



81

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



82

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



83

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



84

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



85

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



86

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



87

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



88

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



89

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



90

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



91

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



92

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



93

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



94

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



95

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



96

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



97

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



98

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



99

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



100

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



101

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



102

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



From: Jeff Harris <jharris@wilsondevelopment.com> 

Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2021 11:14 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Cc: Renee Mathis; David Merchen; Leo Wilson; Todd Wilson; Dirk 

Poeschel 

Subject: [External] Shepherd North endangered species constraint and 

recommendation to proceed 

 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 

Flag Status: Flagged 

 

Ricky- 

As you are aware, as part of our due diligence efforts associated with the proposed Shepherd North 

development project, Wilson Homes retained Kathy Kinsland, Senior Biologist at Argonaut Ecological 

Consulting, to conduct a preliminary wetland mapping and endangered species survey on the properties 

under option to purchase by Wilson Homes for residential development.  Wilson’s Shepherd North 

project study area is comprised of 12 parcels, totaling approximately 350 acres, located generally north 

of the Shepherd Ave & Temperance Ave intersection.  In her Technical Memorandum dated July 15, 

2021, Ms. Kinsland specifically identified acres of potential California Tiger Salamander (CTS) breeding 

habitat and advised the entire balance of the acreage potentially could be classified as CTS upland 

habitat.   

 

In mid-August, Wilson Homes consulted with Dr. Brent Helm, a premier California Tiger Salamander 

authority, to review Ms. Kinsland’s findings and provide recommendations to proceed with a 

project.  Ms. Kinsland’s research had specifically identified a nearby 2017 documented CTS Known 

Breeding Record that necessitates a 1.3 mile radius area requiring more additional analysis.  Inside the 

1.3 mile breeding habitat radius, Federal & State agencies will likely require “drift fence surveys” as a 

condition to potentially issue necessary USFWS & CDFW take-permits for any future site disturbance 

activity.   These surveys are very expensive & require a minimum of 2 wet seasons, after obtaining 

concurrence from the agencies for the scope of the surveys.  Dr. Helm also concluded that USFWS & 

CDFW could likely require mitigation for California Tiger Salamander for much of the proposed project 

area.  The identified CTS breeding habitat would require greater mitigation than the upland habitat, but 

Wilson was advised to generally assume Federal & State agency requirements to provide 3 acres of 

approved CTS mitigation habitat for every 1 acre to be taken for development.  Of note, Wilson was also 

advised that there currently is no agency-approved CTS mitigation habitat available.  It has all been 

previously acquired by the CA High-Speed Rail Authority. 

 

With this discouraging biological study information, the Wilson team met this week to determine how 

best to proceed with development in the area north of Shepherd Ave.  Although we believe 

development is still feasible in that area, the process clearly will be exceptionally time consuming, with 

an undefinable timeline.  For example, it is impossible to predict when we can expect two consecutive 

wet seasons for further study and it is impossible to predict when federal & state agencies will approve 

additional CTS habitat to be purchased for development mitigation purposes.   

 

Given these undefinable realities, Wilson Homes proposes a two-step method to proceed:  

First, we proposed revising the initial Sphere of Influence expansion and EIR to include only the 

approximately 155 acres between Shepherd Ave & Perrin Ave, as originally proposed in early 2020.  This 

ATTACHMENT 3
103

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



would include Wilson’s 75-acre former pecan orchard located immediately adjacent to Heritage Grove 

along Sunnyside Ave that has been proposed to the City of Clovis for residential development. 

Second, the existing proposed Sphere of Influence expansion of approximately 1,000 acres, including 

Wilson’s 350 acres proposed for development, should proceed at a later time.  This will allow time for 

necessary discussions with Federal & State agencies to better define mitigation requirements in the 

proposed greater Sphere of Influence area and to determine expected timelines for availability of 

agency-approved CTS mitigation acreage. 

 

Wilson understands this revised process would require action by the City Council and a revision of the 

EIR consultant’s scope of work.  Although a two-step process will result in significant delay for the larger 

area and is certainly not desirable, it appears to be a more realistically achievable approach given the 

unusual uncertainties resulting from the endangered species documented Breeding Record that was 

identified in this area.  We look forward to your thoughts and response. 

 

Thanks. 

-Jeff 

 

Jeffrey B. Harris 
Chief Operating Officer 
 

 
7550 N. Palm Avenue, Ste. 102 | Fresno, CA 93711 
Office: 559.224.7550 | Fax: 559.224.6625 
Email: jharris@wilsondevelopment.com | wilson-homes.com 

    

 

104

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.

http://wilson-homes.com/


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services Department 

DATE: November 1, 2021 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – Final Acceptance for CIP 20-11 Clovis Avenue 
Street Rehabilitation. 

Staff: Mike Harrison, City Engineer 

Recommendation: Approve 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Vicinity Map 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmember Drew Bessinger owns property within 1000 feet of subject property and, 
pursuant to law, must abstain from participation and decision regarding this item.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to accept the work performed as complete and authorize recording of the 
notice of completion. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The project involves 0.5-mile of street rehabilitation on Clovis Avenue from Alluvial to Nees, 
including grinding and replacing A.C. pavement, replacement of concrete curb returns, 
adjustment of existing utility boxes, manholes, and utility valve boxes to finish grades, 
replacement of traffic striping, markings and signage, and reinstallation of traffic loop detectors. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The bid opening was on July 20, 2021 and City Council awarded the project to the lowest bidder, 
Dave Christian Construction Co., Inc., on August 2, 2021.  The project was completed in 
accordance with the construction documents and within the total contract time allotted. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
1. Contract Award Amount               $638,662.50 
2. Cost decrease resulting from differences between estimated         (37,101.26) 

quantities used for award and actual quantities installed 
3. Contract Change Orders                    $630.00 

CCO1 Installed two new street sign posts for ADA requirements 

105

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



4. Liquidated Damages Assessed                        $0.00 
Final Contract Cost                                                                                   $602,191.24 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Public Utilities Department, City Engineer, Senior Engineering Inspector and Project 
Engineer agree that the work performed by the contractor is in accordance with the project plans 
and specifications, and has been deemed acceptable.  The contractor, Dave Christian 
Construction Co., Inc. has requested final acceptance. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 

1. The notice of completion will be recorded; and 
 

2. All retention funds will be released pursuant to Federal requirements and the Prompt 
Payment of Funds Withheld to Subcontractors clause of the Local Assistance 
Procedures Manual. 

 
Prepared by: Matt Buller, Senior Engineering Inspector 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

106

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



 1

107

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department 

DATE: November 1, 2021 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – City Manager Employment Agreement with John 
Holt, and Appointment of John Holt as City Manager effective January 1, 
2022. 

Staff: Shonna Halterman, General Services Director 

Recommendation: Approve 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. City Manager Employment Agreement effective January 1, 2022 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For City Council to approve the City Manager Employment Agreement (Attachment 1), which 
sets forth the terms and conditions of the appointment of John Holt as City Manager effective 
January 1, 2022 for a period of three years. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Following a selection process, the City Council has selected John Holt as City Manager. An 
employment agreement specifying the terms and conditions of employment has been attached 
for the Council’s approval. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City’s current City Manager is retiring effective December 30, 2021. Following a selection 
process, the City Council has selected Assistant City Manager John Holt to appointment of City 
Manager effective January 1, 2022. The attached agreement sets forth the terms and conditions 
of Mr. Holt’s employment as City Manager.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There are sufficient funds available in the Administration budget to accommodate the salary and 
benefit package recommended in the City Manager Employment Agreement. 
 
 

108

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The City Council has selected Mr. Holt as the City Manager. City Manager Employment 
Agreements require the approval of the City Council in open session. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
The agreement will be executed by all parties and a personnel action form will be prepared 
consistent with the terms of the agreement. 
 
Prepared by: Shonna Halterman, General Services Director 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _LS_  

109

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



 

 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
CITY MANAGER, CITY OF CLOVIS 

 
 This Employment Agreement (Agreement”) is entered into on November 1, 2021, 
by and between the City of Clovis (“City”) and John Holt (“Holt”), with respect to the 
following Recitals, which are a substantive part of this Agreement: 
 

RECITALS 
  

A. City’s current City Manager, Luke Serpa (“Serpa”) is retiring effective 
December 30, 2021. 

 
B. City has completed the process for selecting a new City Manager to 

replace Serpa upon his retirement.   
 
C. Holt is currently serving as the Assistant City Manager and has been 

selected by the City Council to serve as the new City Manager upon Serpa’s retirement. 
 

D. Holt desires to become the new City Manager upon Serpa’s retirement and 
City desires to appoint Holt as the City Manager effective upon Serpa’s retirement, 
subject to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, City and Holt agree as follows: 
 

1. Employment.  City employs Holt as the City Manager effective beginning 
on January 1, 2022.  Holt will be an at-will employee serving at the pleasure of the City 
Council subject to the terms and conditions set forth below.  Holt’s employment with the 
City as City Manager is at the mutual consent of both Holt and the City.  There are no 
express or implied agreements contrary to the foregoing. 
 

2. Term.  This Agreement shall be in effect for a period of three (3) years 
beginning on January 1, 2022, unless terminated in accordance with Section 6 below.  In 
the event of termination pursuant to Section 6, Holt shall not be entitled to any additional 
compensation except as provided in Section 6. 
 

3. Salary.  Holt shall be placed on Step 1 of the City Manager’s salary 
schedule in effect on January 1, 2022.  Holt shall not be entitled to receive any step 
increases but will be entitled to cost of living adjustments made applicable to all 
executive management employees.  Following Holt’s December performance evaluation 
as addressed in Section 5 herein, City and Holt may mutually agree to a contract 
amendment implementing a salary step increase.     
 

4. Duties and Professional Conduct.  Holt shall have the powers and shall 
perform the duties prescribed in the Clovis Municipal Code for the City Manager.  Holt 
shall also perform such additional responsibilities as may be assigned by the City 

ATTACHMENT 1 

110

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



 

 2

Council.  Holt shall adhere to the professional standards of conduct as prescribed by the 
International City/County Management Association. 
 

5. Evaluation.  Holt shall receive a performance evaluation in June and 
December of each year during the Term of this Agreement, or more often as may be 
requested by the City Council.  It shall be the responsibility of Holt to schedule those 
evaluations.  Failure to evaluate shall have no effect on the rights, duties, and obligations 
of the parties herein. 
 

6. Termination and Severance.   
 

a. Termination Without Cause.  The majority of the entire City Council may 
terminate this Agreement at any time without cause by providing at least thirty (30) days 
written notice to Holt.  The provisions of the Clovis Municipal Code, § 2.2.109, 
pertaining to a 90-day waiting period after a Council election shall not apply.   

 
In the event of termination without cause, Holt shall be entitled to severance 

compensation equal to Holt’s salary for the balance of the term of this Agreement, or 
three (3) months, whichever is less.  Severance shall be paid in one lump sum and in the 
same manner as the customary payout of earned benefits.   

 
b. Termination for Cause.  City may terminate this Agreement immediately 

for cause.  If Holt is terminated for cause, Holt shall not be entitled to the severance 
compensation under this Section. 

 
c. For Cause Defined.  Cause shall be defined to include, but shall not be 

limited to, any of the following: (a) the refusal to follow the lawful directions of the 
Council; (b) failure to substantially perform any of the required duties of the City 
Manager; (c) repeated unexcused absences from the City Manager’s office and duties; (d) 
violation of City policies; (e) conviction of a felony or a misdemeanor crime involving 
acts of moral turpitude under California law; (f) use or possession of illegal drugs; (g) 
breach of this Agreement. 

 
 d. Termination Defined.  Termination shall mean removal from office or a 
request that the City Manager resign.  Termination shall not mean a reduction of benefits 
generally applicable to all management employees. 
 

7. Notice of Resignation.  Holt shall provide to City at least sixty (60) days 
written notice of his intent to voluntarily resign as the City Manager. 

 
8. Conviction of Crime Involving Abuse of Office.  Regardless of the term of 

this Agreement, if this Agreement is terminated, any cash settlement related to the 
termination shall be fully reimbursable to Clovis if Holt is convicted of a crime involving 
an abuse of his office.   

 

111

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



 

 3

9. Benefits and Allowances.  During the Term of this Agreement, Holt shall 
continue to receive all of City’s best miscellaneous executive management benefits for 
PERS retirement, annuities, deferred compensation, life and other insurance, expense and 
reimbursement allowances, medical, dental and vision plans, automobile allowances, sick 
leave, vacation, compensatory time off, credit union, worker’s compensation and similar 
subsequent or replacement benefits, all in accordance with the terms and conditions 
thereof as adopted or approved by the City Council.   

 
10. Professional Meetings.  Holt is expected to attend appropriate professional 

meetings at local and state levels and to periodically report to the City Council regarding 
meetings attended and shall be reimbursed for the expense of attending those meetings.  

 
11. Expense Reimbursement.  City shall reimburse Holt for actual and 

necessary expenses incurred within the scope of employment in accordance with City’s 
reimbursement schedules and policies. 
 

12. Notices.  Any notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be personally served or shall be sufficiently given and deemed served 
upon the other party if sent by United State Postal Service, first class postage prepaid, 
and addressed as follows: 
 
TO CITY:   City Council 
    c/o City Attorney 
    City of Clovis 
    1033 Fifth Street 
    Clovis, CA  93612 
 
TO EMPLOYEE:  John Holt 
    City Manager 
    City of Clovis 
    1033 Fifth Street 
    Clovis, CA  93612 
 
Notices shall be deemed given as of the date of personal service or upon the date of 
deposit in the course of transmission with the US Postal Service. 
 

13. General Provisions. 
 

a. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement and the rights and 
obligations of the parties shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of California.  The parties also agree that, in the event of litigation, venue 
shall be the state courts located in Fresno County, California. 

 
b. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement and 

understanding between Holt and City with respect Holt’s employment as City Manager.  

112

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



 

 4

There are no oral understandings, terms, or conditions, and neither party has relied upon 
any representation, express or implied not contained in this Agreement. 

 
c. No Assignment.  Holt may not assign or transfer any rights granted or 

obligations assumed under this Agreement. 
 
d. Modification.  This Agreement cannot be changed or supplemented orally.  

It may be modified or superseded only by a written instrument executed by both of the 
parties. 
 

e. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provision of the 
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
 
CITY       CITY MANAGER 
 
By:  _______________________________  By:  _________________________ 
 Jose Flores, Mayor     John Holt 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
___________________________________ 
 Scott G. Cross, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J:\WDOCS\00603\006\AGT\00899676.DOC 

 

113

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.


	Top
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.	ADM - Oct. 11th Minutes 211101
	Minutes Oct.  11, 2021 Jt Meeting w CUSD

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.	ADM - Adopt Ord. 21-06 211101
	Marker Adopt Ord. 21-06

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.	ADM - Adopt Ord. 21-07 211101
	Marker Adopt Ord. 21-07

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.	GSD Amending Position Allocation PDS 211101
	GSD-PDS Position Allocation Amendment SR
	GSD-PDS Position Allocation Amendment ATT 1 Res 21-__

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.	PD - CA Surplus Property Program
	PD - CA Surplus Property Program SR
	PD - CA Surplus Property Program ATT 1 Res. 21-___
	PD - CA Surplus Property Program ATT 1A
	PD - CA Surplus Property Program ATT 2

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.	PD - ABC GAP Grant
	PD - ABC GAP Grant SR
	PD - ABC GAP Grant ATT 1 Res. 21-___
	PD - ABC GAP Grant ATT 2

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.	PD - OTS STEP Grant
	PD - OTS STEP Grant SR
	PD - OTS STEP Grant ATT 1 Res. 21-___
	PD - OTS STEP Grant ATT 2

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.	PUD - Clovis SWTP Storage Tank Change Order  211101
	PUD - Change Order CIP 21-09 SWTP Tank Coating SR
	PUD - Change Order CIP 21-09 SWTP Tank Coating ATT 1

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.	PDS - Shepherd North SOI Update  211101
	PDS - Shepherd North SOI Revised Boundary SR
	PDS - Shepherd North SOI Revised Boundary ATT 1 LAFCo Application Res. 21-___
	PDS - Shepherd North SOI Revised Boundary ATT 2 EIR Consultant Agreement Res. 21-___
	PDS - Shepherd North SOI Revised Boundary ATT 2A EIR Consultant Agreement Res. 21-___
	PDS - Shepherd North SOI Revised Boundary ATT 3 Applicant Request

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.	PDS - CIP 20-11 Final Acceptance 211101
	PDS - CIP 20-11 SR
	PDS - CIP 20-11 ATT 1 - Vicinity Map

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.	GSD - City Manager Contract 211101
	GSD - City Manager Agreement 2022 Holt SR
	GSD - City Manager Agreement 2022 Holt ATT 1 Agreement

	Bottom

